


The suggestions outlined in this report do not envisage the
alteration of the proposed layout of the development in any way.
The suggestions would not necessarily involve the construction of
a specific 'heritage centre' within the complex (though no doubt
this would be of value and benefit). Rather, we propose the
utilisation of the historical and archaeological information to
introduce historical elements within the details of the design
throughout the complex as a whole, as part of a coherent overall
strategy to marketing this dimension. As such we suggest that
this could well become an attraction in its own right, and of
commercial benefit.
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6.

This preliminary document is restricted to various ideas which could be
used to reflect the historical and archaeological importance of the site
in the new dovelopment palkentinlly enhancing ils physieal and commercial
attractiveness.

The potential can be approached on a variety of levels depending on the
degree of interest by the parties involved, consideration of the
commercial gain, and overal budgetary constraints.

As part of a general consideration of this potential, two factors should
be borne in mind. One is the recent rapid growth of Carmarthen as a
commercial centre, attracting an increasing number of shoppers and
visitors - a growth which will obviously be enhanced by the proposed
development. The second factor is the potential for enhancing the town
as a tourist centre in its own right, utilising its own past.

Whilst Carmarthen is, historically and archaeologically, the most
important town in Wales (the only town with an urban history in both
Roman and Mediaeval times), there is relatively little in its existing
fabric which provides an independent incentive for tourists and other
visitors attracted by historic atmosphere and features. Although Roman
and mediaeval elements are preserved in the existing street patterns,
their significaence is not readily apparent and many major elements which
would have enhanced the historic atmosphere - eg the mediaeval town walls
and gates, are no longer extant. Whilst the historic layout of the older
parts of the town contributes to an attractive atmosphere, individual
historic attractions are few - eg the amphitheatre, portions of the
castle ~ and cannot be considered (though capable of further
enhancement), powerful attractions in their own right. Carmarthen Museum
lies outside the town.

The Blue Street redevelopment offers an exciting and challenging
opportunity to create a significant visitor/tourist resource, using
elements and themes reflecting, in the development, the history of the
Friars Park area (and perhaps also a wider area of the town).

Several modes of interpreting themes relating to the history of the area
are suggested here. It is considered that, depending on budgetary
constraints, there is sufficient historical/archaeological information
and material to effectively make the complex into an 'interpretative
centre' as well as a commercial one, reflecting incidentally, the
Mediaeval Friars' own attempts to reach the widest possible audience.



If a high level of exploitation of the area as a historic/tourist centre
is aimed for, then funding bodies, such as the Welsh Tourist Board, the
local authorities, the Arts Council (for example bursaries for murals,
sLoinod gloss, olher ark work) may be inleresled in contribubting
resources.

The Friary: themes relating to existing knowledge of the complex and life

within it

These can be done in two-dimensions as paintings, murals or mosaics
possibly done in the style of the period, eg, Giotto, the major influence
on the decoration of the original Franciscan monuments for the walls of
the proposed arcade; as dioramas (miniature theatres viewed through
prisms set in rectangular openings giving the illusion of movement and
full size or as holograms. The ideas to bring across would be the
importance of the Friary in the Middle Ages, the archaeological remains
and the friars' skills at engineering, health and caring. Explanatory
text would be kept to a minimum.

a) The inside of the church and sacristy as it was at the time of the
Dissolution.

b) The Fire which resulted in the preservation of the stained glass
window recovered by the excavation

c) The Friars meeting in the Chapter House and skeletons under the
floor discovorod Lhrough oxeavalion

d) The I'riara preaching al preaching crosses with an explanalion of why
the Grey Friars were so popular

e) Curing the sick and the types of herbs the Friars used

f) Friars using the exchequer and traders bringing in their goods,
incorporating representations of the jetons and counting board ~ the
mediaeval commercial aspect of the site

g) The aqueducts and conduits they built bringing fresh water to the
Friary

h) The kitchen, buttery and brewhouse, catching fish in the River Towy,
gardens for food and herbs

i)  The King's Chamber

Environmental features carrying through the theme of the Friary

In addition to the use of elements; in whatever medium, fram the themes
above:

a) Musical recordings of the bells, and/or the restoration of a bell on
the site, summoning the faithful to prayers and brief chanting
appropriate to the period and hour e.g. Terce 9.00 a.m., Nones 12
noon, Vespers 4.30 p.m.



10.

11.

12.

b) The plan of the fFriary marked by plaques set into the ground in the
car park or on a wall where appropriate, describing the part of the
Friory Lhol wuod Lo be Lhore und ilo Tuncbion

c) A mural depicling aspects of the hislory of (Mediaeval) Carmarthen

d) Stations for donations to charities allocated to different
organisations at different times

e) Use of themes from the life and philosophy of St. Francis e.g.
birds, flowers, animals

f) Designs from tiles found at the Friary for floors and walls

g) Designs from the seal matrices

h}) Some replica stained glass windows - substantial remains of the
originals were found during the excavation.

i) A fountain

J) Plaques and/or amorial bearings for the illustrious men buried at
the Friary

k)  The Tudors represented by reference to their architectural and
decorative styles (eg Perpendicular forms, Tudor rose device, arms
of Henry VII (with Greyhound and Dragon supporters)

Civil War aspects. The western boundary of the CCL development is formed

by the remains of the Civil War earthworks and bastion, possibly the

finest survivng example of a Royalist town defence anywhere in the

country. This period of the site's history could be exploited by use of

enlargements of conltemporary prints {or designs based on these) depicting

Lhe use of Lhis kind of defence (batlLle scene, artillery etc). See also

paragraph 12 below. '

Displays in two dimensions for cases (can incorporate three-dimensional

illusions)

a) Carmarthen then and now showing the town plan from the air

b) Carmarthenshire 1284~1535 featuring sites that the public can visit

c) The archaeological excavation and its history - a sequence of aerial
photographs perhaps

d) The Friary as it might have appeared c.1400

e) A replica of the stained glass window from the excavation

The use of names for specific parts of the development - buildings, areas

of buildings, pedestrian walks, car parks ete.

1) Personalities associated with the site
Tudor Aled )
William Egwafgd )

Bards



Sir Rhys ap Thomas "Eagle of Carmarthen" (tomb removed from Friary,
now in St. Peter's Church,
Carmarthon)
Edmund Tudor, father of Henry VII
William de Valance, Earl of Pembroke (first recorded lay burial in
the Friary Cemetery)

Civil War Period

General Roland Laugharne {Commander; Parliamentary Forces)

Richard Vaughan, 2nd Earl of Carbery, Golden Grove (Chief Cavalier)

Prince Rupert (King's nephew, who appointed Colonel Charles Gerard
to command the Royalists

Colonel Lovelace (Commander of Garriseon)

Educational Use
Thomas Lloyd - first Grammar School in Carmarthen

2) Preservation of existing historic names:
Navigation Lane; Friars Park (?for a car park); Mill Street;
Buckingham Place; The Bulwarks

3)  Contrivance of new names based on historic elements:
Cwrt-yr-Brody#r Llwyd (Greyfriars); The Cloister(s);
The Chapler llouse; The Choir; The King's Chember ctc.

13. Many of these suggestions could be implemented on a small scale on ¢
various parts of the site, enhancing its attractiveness and interest, or
on a larger scale, as part of a coherent design and plan to deliberately
enhance the commercial and tourist potential of the area to the maximum
by exploiting the historic factors to the full. If there is further
interest in these ideas, then we suggest that a meeting should be
arranged at our offices, between the Trust, the architects of the
principal companies involved, and District Planning Department Officers.
This would allow an opportunity to discuss ideas in more detail and
examine the full range of information and illustrative material that the
Trust possesses about the site.

D. G. Benson, Trust Director, T. A. James, Greyfriars Excavation Director,
Barbara Roberts, Visual Display Officer
15.7.86
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Emergency at

hospital

At the start of a new
yeur it's oalways a  useful.
exercise to stand back apd
examine the issues which
Juwve occupied o -lot of our
attention  during 1984 ond
will continue 10 do so in
1985,

It was  disuppointing to
fearn lust week that cthe
day-to-day runsdng costs for
the new Intensive care uvnit
ut the West Wale, General
Hospitul ut Glmpgwili are
Just not therc wt the moment.

The four-bedded’ vnit cost
£4 millioa 1o build und was
completed last Aupust- It
witl by staffeg by 23 nurses
who have still to by uppoin-
fed.

Clearly there iy a0 certain
wnount of  embusTusment
us the money for expensive
cyuipment continues lo pour
in from various ocgunis-
ations und individumls who
v condmrked on sponsor-
ship vventn, 'T'o  date  done-
atlouy slund wt £57,000,

But the Tigure thnt muntters
to fire the uwnit lato daily
use Is LI78,000 — the cust
of running it for ode yeor:

What we lind baffling is
that ug the unit was ser to
open cwsly this yeur why
wisn't the cosh  identified
befure now?  With, highly
skilled staff still to by found
it would scemr that time was
runniag out,

If thy first putients are
not in the new ward by
MLrch there are going to be
a lot of disappointed poople

in Dyfed. For some, the
desperate  sesrch for cash

could mean  thy  difference
hetween life amg) death,

Stop acling -
do something

Another subject wy heard
much abowt wiy the attempt
to buy e fermey Lyrc
cnema in King Street, Cor-
nuarthen, and turn it (into
a themre cenire.

Aprin  thae wihs  disap-
pobtmiend ay the loval autie
orltley weto nut propieed to
glve flnancind support.

Where docs  thist  leave
Carmuthen  Distrld Coun-
cil's plan which looked ot
the way Carmucthen should
develop up until 19917

The draft plon sayss “Itis
the policy of the districl
council, in conjunction with
appropriste intcrested part-
ies, ta enplore the feasihil-
ity of constrocting a con-
cert ball with theatre Facil-
ities',

If Carmasthen is to be
taken serlously as o town of
any importonco it must have
first class theatrical facilitics

Moncy minst be found to
reboild a pile of stones in
Picton’s mrmory, Make
moncy availabl, to bulld a
stage for the fotme of thur
artg in Carmurthen,

Big rescue excavation

When Carmarthen  District
Council proposed redeveloping
Friars' Park with a massive
store’ and  adjoining  mulni-
decked car-park, it was not the
first time that a council had
{aken a particular interest in
the site.

Almost 450 years apo, in
1543, the mayor and alder-
men wrote to King Henry VTII
‘for  permission to save the
rapidly decaying fabde of Car-
marthen's Franciscan [riary.

Only five years had passed
since this fumed scat of Welsh
Fterature had  been Forcibly
closed by the king during the
Dissolution of the monasteries.

In that shont time the build-
ings had become rooffess, and
as the mayor so coloudully
complained in his leiter, it was
“runaynge dayelye in contyn-
nuall ruyne ang decaic’—there
was not a fool of leay left
on lhe rools—and, he added,
it would be a “pitie that such

buyldinge, in such u  baron
contric, shulde not  be con-
vihila  to some  lawlul ... wse,
for (e mainkenuce  of  the
commion  welth"

As a4 result of the mayor's

uppeal, the king  gave per-
mission for the conversion of
the site into a grammar
schoof—but fate was (o strike
a cruel blow. The school's
founder, Thomas Lloyd, dictl
in 1547 and the school closed.

HA'LLOWED

It was almost us il history
had shut its door on the once
hallowed cloisiers of the Grey-
friars, The friary, final resting
place- of so many great lami-
Hies, was regarded ns ope of
the' ﬁncsx pieces of archilec-
ture in all South Wales.

It could well have become
a cathadral in 1536 (had
Bishop Barlow hag his way),
bul it now became cven more
ruinaus, its walls collapsed and
robbed of stone, and over the
yeard  almost  unbolievably it
disappeared from the landseape.

By our time the only hind
of its former existence - re-
mained in a solitary placename
Friars' Park.

So it was that when the
Distiict Cruncil made its plan
to redevelop the site the arch-
acologists were set o fask of
unravelling the complex  se-
uence of events  between  the
frinry™s  Coundwdion  hack
the middlo o the ioicenth
century, and Lhe present day.

With the oco-operdion of 1he
council the Dyfeg Archacologi-
cal ‘Trust hog just completed
its -second  year of * fascinating
investigation that amounts (o
the dargest rescue  excavation
ever undertaken on a Francis-
can frary 1 Brlain. The es-
cavaticn has provided tempo-
rary. employment for gver 50
people, the bulk of the finan-
cial support has come through
the ‘MSC's Community Pro-
gramme ang the Welsh Office.

WEALTH

The cxcatation results have
been exceeded the cacavators'
expectations, Ij can now be
demonstrated  that  Carmarthen
Greyfriars wag one of the lar-
gest houses of the Franciscan
order in the country., Whn
were the reasons for  (his?

The most likely answer [fies
in the muml foundation period
back in the 12705 or a little

Carmarthen frlary

Carmarthen
Greylriars

Ininetric ceconstroction of the (rlary based oa the excavaled evideuce.

Walluce,

vatlier, It ks probable that the
(riary was lounded by a por-
son  of considemble wealth,

Since Canmmarthen was g
Royal ‘borough: at that period,

then it is possible that either

Edward 1. or hig brother Eu-
mund, had a hand in first pro-
viding the site and then buiki-
ing the church and complev
range of buildings wsed to fec
and house the community of
friars.

‘Friaries were not buill to a
precise layout, unlike the great
monasteries ang abbeys of the
Cistercian _and  Benedictine
orders. Yet here, at Carmar.
then, the buildings were for-
mally ranged arcund two clois-
ters, all set on the south gitle
of the church.

‘The main or “great™ cloister,
which lies beneath the gardens
of 12-15 Frars' Park, had
threc buildings aroung s east,
west and south gides with the
church on the north. The clois-
fer alleys were paved in a

mast Javish wiy, Polished wollle
Noortitey that must have taken
on the appearance of marble.

+y APARTMENTS

The ' building “on™ the west
may have contained the main
kitchen with apariments above
for guests.
water, conveyd through mas-
sive blocks of dressed sand-
stone, in one room. A paved
passage on the north side of
the butlding fed from the out-
side world inte the enclosey
tranquility of the cloister, with
its colonaded walkways and
gardens.

The southern range—origin-
ally another massive two glorcy
aflair—hag the remains of a
cider press on the ground floor,
which suggests that this was
the brewhouse referred to in
a survey of 1538, Beneath the
polished flaartiles in the eastemn
cloister alley were scores of
burial; in unmarked graves—
probably friars, as the clois-

It had running

Dawing by Framk

ter was o Taveneed bival pest-
ing place Tor (he brothers,

This urea of the excavation
has proved extremely difficult
due 10 a completely unforseen
facter,  For running through
the back gardens of the colt-
tages  in  Friars' Park  and
through the Upper Mill Street
car-park, was a massive diich
which. had all but destroyed
what little remained of ihe
friary's walls ang floors.

This ditch is thought to form
part of the massive ring of
fortifications thrown wp around
Carmarthen  during  the Civil
War in 1644,

The fincly-preservey  sections
of these  defences in the
grownds  of the Police HQ
{The Dulwarks) are of course
well known,

But the uxistence of this
titch, which has ulso been
traced through the grounds of
Friars’ Park House, adds a
completely  npew  dimension to
this poorly documented per-

at friary goes on

In this short article TERRY JA MES, fiel officer of Dyfed Archae-
ological Trust, reflects upon the results of two years excavation at

iog of Cuarmarthen's history.

Although 1he ditch hed  sev-
erely damaged the Iriary, sufli-
cient remained to provide an
outline of the buildings on the
cast side of the cloister, Fere,
o chapler house has been (is-
covered, floorey with medieval
glazed ules, Beneath the Noor

again numerows  burials  have
been  discovered,
SURPRISE

The chapter  house  extends
across the northern side of the
Upper Mill Street car  park,
and was Lo provide yel another
surprise. For tackeld on to the
easiern end was another  large
medieval buildings of unknown
function any extent, amd cer-
ininly withowt paralle] in other
Franciscan plans.

Turning to the soulhern—or
“litile™  cloister. The buildings
arounyd this  were investigated
in 1983, The southernmost
comprised kitchen, a hall (or
perhaps o releclory) and an-
other room with o privy block
o Lhe south,

It iy possiblo that this el
condained  suile  reprosents  an
“infiemary™ for it was set far
away from the noize and busie
of Lammas Steeel, and  well
proteciey hy the northern clois-
ier,

The [riars were renowned for
caring for the aged and infirm
especially those who could payl
Perhaps W was here that Sir
Rhys ap Thomas, along with
his -Bard Tudur Aled, spent
their last years?

This building contained the
speclacular near complele
stained glass window dated o
around 1250-1280. The win-
dow had coliapsed  inwarids
when the  building wag  acci-
dentally et aligh; soon aller
the closure of 1he Irhary, The
most telling  discoverics were a
series of Jead and copper smelt-
ing furnaces angd ingat mouhls
crutlely set up within the build-
ing probably by Henry VHI's
commissioners.

They were employed to re-
caver all saleable goods—in-
cluding lead and copper sheel-
ing  from- the roofs. ‘Their
destructive  1ash  way  halied
when the building was  cn-
gulfed by a spectacular fire.

It was then left abandoned
as an open rain for centurics
—to be Jemobshe in the 18k
century when Thee gwesemt bann-

dartes  aromud P’ Park
House were set up.
COTTAGENS )
What of the dhureh itseli?
* This remains Tor the present

outside the redevelopment area.
The nave probably lies under
the cotlages on the north side
of the Friars' Park ang, the
quire exlends across the rear
of T. P. Hughes' store, per-
haps into the car park of ihe
Boar's Heag Hotel.

Much yet remains to be ex-
cavated if the full extent is ever
to be recovered, and the Arch-
acological Trust will continue
work on resolving some of the
oulstanding probloms over the
nexi few months,

But although 1he church it-
seif has not been excavated,
sufficicnt in plan of the rest
of the Irary has been recov-
ered (o present an impression
of ils overall Jayout.
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